ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 12, 2009
1: 07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representative John Harris
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve M ke Doogan
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 114

"An Act relating to availability of state transportation
facilities and state-owned or state-operated transportation
nodes for delivering conpassionate aid during a disaster
ener gency. "

- MOVED CSHB 114(TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 127

"An Act providing that the Alaska Railroad Corporation is
subject to the Executive Budget Act and providing that
expenditures of the Alaska Railroad Corporation are subject to
appropriation; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 133
"An Act relating to traffic control devices on highways and
claims related to those devices; relating to designation of
hi ghway systens; mnaking conform ng amendnments; and providing for
an effective date.”

- Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 114

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2009



SHORT TI TLE: USE STATE TRANS FACI LI TY FOR DI SASTER Al D
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

02/ 04/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 09 (H) TRA, FIN

02/ 17/ 09 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 17/ 09 (H Heard & Hel d; Assigned to Subconmmttee
02/ 17/ 09 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 12/ 09 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 127
SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA RAI LROAD BUDGET
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE

02/ 13/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 09 (H) TRA, FIN
03/ 12/ 09 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

DANA STROWMEN, St af f

Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented changes to HB114, on behal f of
the prime sponsor, Representative Jay Ranras.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions as prine
sponsor of HB 127.

JOHN BI TNEY, St aff

Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified at the request of the prine
sponsor of HB 127, Representative Bill Stoltze.

Bl LL O LEARY, Chief Financial Oficer

Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussion of HB 127.

JASON BRUNE, Executive Director

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2009



Resour ce Devel oprment Counci
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 127.

BOB THOVAS
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 127.

DON LOVNELL, President

Al aska Transportation Consultants

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 127.

DONALD CALLAHAN, Menber

Rai| Safety and Devel oprment G oup

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 127.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legi sl ative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and provided audit information
during the discussion of HB 127.

PATRI CK GAMBLE, President, and CEO

Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 127.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:07: 31 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee nmeeting to order at 1:07 p.m Representatives Johnson,
G uenberg, Minoz, and WIson were present at the call to order
Representati ves Johansen and Harris arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

1: 07: 35 PM

HB 114- USE STATE TRANS FACI LI TY FOR DI SASTER Al D

1: 08: 20 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2009



CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 114, "An Act relating to availability of state
transportation facilities and state-owned or state-operated
transportation nodes for delivering conpassionate aid during a
di saster energency."

1: 09: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmade a notion to adopt HB 114, Version
26- LS0505\ P, Kane, 3/10/009.

1: 09: 54 PM

DANA STROWEN, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, speaking on behalf of the prine sponsor,
Representative Jay Ranras, offered changes to the bill since its
| ast hearing. She explained the Transportation subcommttee
chaired by Representative Minoz reported that the proposed
provision of HB 114 was renoved from AS 26.23.020 and was added
as a new section to AS 44.19 under the Ofice of the Governor
She stated that the purpose and the nechanism of the bil
remai ns the sane. However, by renoving it from AS 26.23.020,
the governor would not need to declare a disaster before using
state owned or operated transportation nodes when delivering
conpassionate aid at the tine the governor determ nes that
public safety and health conditions in an area of the state
requi re energency assistance. This would provide the governor
the flexibility not to declare a disaster. Addi tionally,
subsection (b) is amended to renove liability from the state
the ARRC and subsequent officers, agents, and enployees in the
event of injury or death of a person or property danage
resulting from providi ng assi stance.

1:11: 34 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that there being no objection, Version P
was before the conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report HB 114, Version 26-
LSO0505\P, Kane, 3/10/09, out of <conmttee wth individual
recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal note.

There being no objection, CSHB 114(TRA) was reported from the
House Transportation Standing Commttee.

1:12: 14 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2009



The committee took an at-ease from1:12 p.m to 1:13 p. m

HB 127- ALASKA RAI LROAD BUDGET

1: 13: 30 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 127, "An Act providing that the Al aska Railroad
Corporation is subject to the Executive Budget Act and providing
that expenditures of the Al aska Railroad Corporation are subject
to appropriation; and providing for an effective date."”

1: 14: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor of HB 127, explained that the bill would address a major
policy issue. However, he opined this is not a new issue and is
one that has often been debated. He pointed out the Al aska
Rail road Corporation (ARRC) is the only state entity not under
t he Executive Budget Act. He remarked that he is glad the ARRC
is under state ownership since it serves his comunity and
traverses many conmunities in the state. He enphasized he would
like to maintain state ownership of the ARRC He stressed that
he does not want the ARRC “cannibalized” by private party
wi shing to buy it. He pointed out that he is not an eneny of
the ARRC, but is a staunch supporter of the ARRC He pointed
out that his own property lies adjacent to the ARRC property.
He related that while he does not have any specific concern, he

has overall general policy concerns. He observed the current
happenings in the federal governnent led to his belief that the
corporate veil over the ARRC should be renoved. He noted
Congressnen can grill the chief executive officers and professed

he does not want to nodel that behavior with the railroad.
However, he said he does want to ask tough questions, to inquire
about bonuses and financial questions to avoid the enbarrassnent
that faces other corporations in the U S He offered that he
has no interest in mcromanaging the ARRC He remarked the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation is a nodel corporation that
was once exenpt, but has been under the Executive Budget Act for

14 vyears. He further opined that AHFC has thrived and
prospered, has won national awards, and has inproved its bond
ratings. He stated that this bill is not an economc death
sentence or a shackle for the entity. He further opined that

the legislature should have broad authority over a corporation
the size and scope of the ARRC

1:19:41 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered the criticism that the ARRC at
times displays a corporate arrogance, which he said is not a
healthy attitude for a public corporation. He concl uded t hat
the ARRC could mature under the Executive Budget Act wthout
constraining its ability to operate as a critical corporate
busi ness and transportation entity in the state.

1: 20: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOQZ inquired as to whether the autonony of the
ARRC would be affected by being under the authority of the
Executive Budget Act.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE surmised that the ARRC wll express
concerns to state that such a change wll affect its
relationships with private contractors. However, he opined the
Executive Budget Act will provide the appropriate oversight. He
related his understanding that sone changes wi |l happen, but it
is appropriate for the state to examne the railroad s business
relationships. He stated that prior to the |egislative session

“there was a lot of talk about the railroad buying Flint Hills
Refinery.” He related that this matter has quieted down, and
may or may not resurface, but ultimately the |egislature should
have a role in these types of decisions.

1:22: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered that he was not involved in the
federal transfer of the railroad to the state. He inquired as
to whether anything in the federal |aw would prohibit this
action.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered that he thought he had taken
down a note on the natter.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that if it is necessary to
make any changes, the l|legislature would need a joint resolution
to ask the Congress to change the law. He recalled a bill cane
before the House State Affairs Standing Committee that would
allow enployees to take wunpaid |eave to work on disaster
matters, but the ARRC asked for a specific exenption from the
bill. He highlighted that other such exenptions m ght already
be in place for the ARRC and suggested the sponsor may wish to
investigate that matter.

1:25:15 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE agreed to wrk wth Representative
Gruenberg to review and research the |aws. Representati ve
Stoltze related his understanding that the bill would provide
sufficient flexibility. However, he suggested that HB 127 w ||
of fer many issues to debate.

1:25: 57 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to how the bill would affect ARRC
enpl oyees’ st at us.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE explained that the enployees would have
the same status as other corporate entities such as the AHFC
He characterized the status as a hybrid status, but the ARRC is
nore conplicated due to the union status. He related that HB
127 does not intend to change an enpl oyee’ s st at us.

1: 27: 43 PM

JOHN BITNEY, Staff, Representative John Harris, Al aska State
Legislature, stated that he currently works for Representative
John Harris, but Representative Stoltze asked himto hel p assi st
him wi th background issues for HB 127. However, he stated that
he is not speaking in favor of the bill.

MR. BITNEY related that various state statutes define state
agenci es. He pointed out that the ARRC is exenpted from the
State Procurement Act and the Administrative Procedures Act. He
related his experience, noting that his AHFC service tinme did
not count as credited service, and when he returned to work for
the admnistration his time at AHFC did not count. He opi ned
that HB 127 is intended to subject the ARRC to the Executive
Budget Act under AS 37.07, which outlines the procedures for the
budget process including the responsibilities of agencies to
submt their revenues and expenditures to the governor’s office
and to the Ofice of Managenent & Budget, and the tineline for
t he governor to announce his/her budget on Decenber 15th as well
as other tinelines. He reiterated that this bill would bring
the ARRC in as a public corporation.

1:30: 58 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he appreciated M. Bitney's

presence and that he could point out agencies in simlar status.
He characterized HB 127 as an extrenely inportant bill.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2009



CHAIR WLSON related her understanding that the purpose of HB
127 is to prevent what happened in Washi ngton from happening in
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE related that as anecdotal comment. He
stated that the ARRC should not have a veil of secrecy over a
public entity. He highlighted that he does not want to mcro-
manage the ARRC, but offered he would not want to hear that
bonuses were paid or vacations were paid. He opined that HB 127
will help to ensure basic good governnent and is |ong overdue.
In further response to Chair WIson, Representative Stoltze said
that the administration should have oversight of the ARRC He
recalled conversations wth sone undisclosed sources that
related the bill is |ong overdue.

1:34: 47 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked if +the purpose was to understand the
activities of the ARRC

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE related he would like the legislature to
have t he sane t hor ough, transparent, and pr of essi onal
relationship with the ARRC as with the AHFC. He opined that the
AHFC has thrived and prospered.

1: 35: 44 PM

MR. BITNEY concurred with Representative Stoltze' s remarks. He
offered that the AHFC has been fully subject to the Executive
Budget Act and has had two credit rating upgrades. He surm sed
the same was true with AIDEA and the Al aska Conm ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE). He related that the credit
agenci es becane confortable over time with the AHFC s status.
He referred to the language in the section of the budget that
contains appropriations for corporations. He offered his belief
t hat t he state’s cor porations have recei ved unlimted
appropriation authority from the legislature in terns of their
ability to receive and expend funds. He opined the Executive
Budge Act process is nore of a codification of a process to
participate in overall policy decision-nmaking in establishing a
corporation’ s budget.

1:38: 10 PM
CHAIR WLSON related that she has reviewed the comentary

contained in nenbers’ packets. She inquired as to whether the
state would be liable for the ARRC under the current bill.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE stated that he does not think liability
woul d change under HB 127. He acknow edged that the ARRC has
raised the issue of torts and liabilities. However, he offered
his belief that the state would have the sane liability under
the bill.

1: 39: 22 PM

MR. BITNEY explained that the reason why corporations or
authorities are set up as enterprise funds is an effort to try
to separate the liabilities from the state. He remarked that
the state does not want the debts, such as AIDEA bonds since
t hose bonds are not state debts.

CHAIR WLSON recalled the student |oan program under the Al aska
Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education (ACPE), and related that
the ACPE can not buy bonds due to the downturn in the econony.
She asked for clarification about what would change under HB
127.

1:41: 07 PM

MR. BI TNEY expl ai ned that the Executive Budget Act was passed in
1970. He related his understanding that after the 1969 |ease
sale, the legislature fornmalized the budget process. He
remarked that the ARRC s act outlines the budget process and
identifies each agency’'s responsibilities in the budget process.
He stated that in practical terns, the ARRC would need to
receive an appropriation in the annual budget to authorize

expenditure of their funds. He remarked that nothing is
currently in the operating budget for the ARRC budget. He
surm sed that this is the only public corporation in Al aska not
in the operating budget. He related that the remaining state
enterprises have a line item in the operating budget. He
indicated the biggest difference would be there would be a
section in the budget for the ARRC In further response to

Chair WIlson, M. Bitney stated the ARRC is a public corporation
of the state.

1:43: 18 PM
REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered that the state will not have any
input in which projects are funded in the stinmulus package

f undi ng. He stated that the ARRC funding from the stimnulus
funding should be part of a conprehensive discussion of all of

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -9- March 12, 2009



the transportation needs in the comunities of Anchorage,
Fai r banks, and any community al ong the Rail belt.

1: 44: 05 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to whether the ARRC should give
di vi dends.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered no. He noted that all of the
other public corporations do pay dividends. He recalled that
the ARRC said it was not planning on issuing dividends. He
offered his belief that some arrogance within the ARRC exists

He pointed out that the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities has safety crossing projects that conpete wth
funding projects, yet the ARRC will not consider assisting in
f undi ng. He said he hopes those are the types of things that
m ght be consi dered. He opined that it would not be mcro-
managenment, but rather responsible interaction of a mjor
corporation that transects our comunities. |In further response
to Chair WIson, Representative Stoltze agreed that if a
community existed and the ARRC wanted to build a railroad in
t hose instances the ARRC woul d accept the responsibility.

1:46: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ inquired as to whether AHFC enpl oyees are
consi dered state enpl oyees.

MR. BITNEY surm sed that technically, they are not. However, he
surm sed the AHFC enpl oyees are subject to the Public Enployees
Retirement System (PERS), but are partially exenpt so the
enpl oyees are not part of the Supplenental Benefits System
(SBS) . In further response to Chair WIlson, M. Bitney offered
that the University of Alaska also has a different retirenent
system He remarked that a small block of AHFC enpl oyees are
part of a union.

1: 48: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCZ asked if ARRC enployees qualify for Public
Enpl oyees Retirenment System (PERS).

MR. BITNEY said he was not certain, although he knew that many

of t he ARRC s enpl oyees participate in | abor uni on
or gani zati ons.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 10- March 12, 2009



BILL O LEARY, Vice President, Fi nance, Al aska Railroad
Corporation (ARRC), nentioned that Patrick Ganble, President,
ARRC is also available for questions. He related that the
enpl oyees of the ARRC are not state enployees, but are Al aska
Rai | road Corporate enpl oyees. The ARRC is responsible for the
benefit packages for its enployees, he stated.

1: 51: 54 PM

MR. O LEARY addressed the question relating to procurenent
rul es. He stated that the ARRC is not subject to AS 36.30 but
has substantially equival ent procurenent rules. He related with
respect to federal stinulus package funding, that the ARRC w ||
hope to receive funding, but the funding will not detract from
funds of other agencies. He stated that the ARRC is enshrined
in fornmula prograns of the federal Transit Adm nistration and
the federal stimulus funds are due to the ARRC s participation
in the formul a prograns.

1: 53: 13 PM

CHAIR WLSON related that the sponsor was concerned about
expenditures  of the stinmulus funding. She asked for
clarification.

MR. O LEARY answered that the only restrictions on the federal
funding are constraints by the federal agencies including
tinelines, eligibility of projects, primarily related to the
ARRC s passenger service. He nmentioned that one source of
federal stinulus package funding is from the Federal Hi ghways
Adm nistration’s Rail Fixed Guideway System which is designated
for railroads.

1:54: 52 PM

MR. O LEARY, in response to Chair WIson, opined that currently
the ARRC s liabilities by statute are the ARRC s liabilities.
He expressed concern that the nore control exerted over the
ARRC, the greater the chance the state wll assune liabilities.
He pointed out that he is not an attorney. In further response
to Chair Wlson, M. O Leary expressed sonme concern with respect
to long-term contracts as they relate to the ARRC s ability to
serve its customers, as well as serve its citizens. Additional
concern exists on debt obligations of the ARRC, since initially
the debt was not incurred subject to legislative appropriation.
He expressed another concern that it my be nobre expensive to
borrow future funds.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2009



1: 57: 16 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether HB 127 would hanper the ARRC since
the bill represents a major policy shift.

MR. O LEARY referred to ARRC comments in the commttee nenbers
packet that outline the inpact of HB 127. He opined that the
bill would be a radical shift for the ARRC

1: 58: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRIS inquired as to the effects on the ARRC if
it operated under the Executive Budget Act.

MR. O LEARY reiterated that the ARRC prepared a briefing neno
that outlines sonme concerns. He expressed concern that it could
be nore difficult for the ARRC to respond to customers’ needs.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S asked for an explanation of how it would
be nore difficult for the ARRC to respond to custonmers’ needs.

MR. O LEARY offered that one area would be the hiring of
enpl oyees. He related the ARRC s budget is approved by its
board, which is reforecast given changes in custoner needs. He
related a scenario in which the ARRC anticipates in Novenber the
equi pnent and staffing in its budget process to transport a
certain amount of gravel. However, in the event that the ARRC
realizes in May or June that the Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities let additional contracts and significantly

nore gravel will need to noved, the ARRC nust react quickly to
expend additional resources to neet custoner needs, he
expl ai ned.
2:01: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI' S opined that other state agencies nust do
So. He acknowl edged that the ARRC is sonmewhat sinmlar to a
private sector business. He related his understanding that M.
O Leary is relating that the ARRC would be hanstrung by the
Executive Budget Act in ternms of hiring enpl oyees.

MR. O LEARY answered that it is unclear how the process would
work for the ARRC. He stated that it appears as though it would
be problematic. He related his understanding that nuch would
depend on the structure the legislature would set, and whether
it would have a fixed budget.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2009



2:01: 53 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS recalled that a nunber of people have
expressed that the ARRC is arrogant, that it does not need to
listen to anyone. He offered that he is not stating that the
ARRC represents that culture, but rather that it has that
reput ation. He reiterated that the generally held viewoint is
that the ARRC does not answer to anyone. He recognized that the
ARRC is a wholly owned subsidiary of the state. He inquired as
to whether M. O Leary understands the viewpoint.

MR. O LEARY rel ated that he understands the concern. He offered
his belief that under M. Ganble’'s |eadership, the ARRC has
taken extraordinary efforts to listen to the various comunity
concerns, its custoners, and the public. He acknow edged t hat
any nunber of issues can spark controversy since the ARRC covers
650 mles of track and is bound to inpact people. He opi ned
that some people will not always be pleased with the decisions
that the ARRC nakes. However, he further opined that the ARRC
has cone a long way in ternms of the ability of managenent to
listen and act in the best interests of the ARRC and the state.
He comrended M. Ganbl e’ s | eadership of the ARRC

2:04: 37 PM

MR. O LEARY related that the venue for public input is a seven
menber board, appointed by the governor. He nentioned that two
commi ssioners serve on the ARRC board, that it holds public
nmeetings that take public coment. Aside from the formal board
process, the ARRC has undertaken outreach to entities that have
expressed concern, he stat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S mai ntai ned that he is expressing the views
that he has heard in the | egislature.

MR. O LEARY answered that he understands Representative Harris’s
concern.

2:05:31 PM

MR. O LEARY, in response to Representative G uenberg, answered
that in terns of legal issues that the ARRC |egal team has
identified a nunber of issues that it believes would require
analysis as to the inpacts of HB 127 on the federal transfer
act, the Alaska Railroad Transfer Act of 1982 (ARTA), prior to
nmovi ng forward.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 13- March 12, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that all public |lega

docunents concerning HB 127 be nmade available to the commttee.

He inquired as to whether M. O Leary was aware of the ARRC
enpl oyees’ position on the bill.

MR. O LEARY answered that he can not purport to speak for the
enpl oyees, many of whom belong to five separate unions.

2:07:47 PM

MR. O LEARY, in response to Representative G uenberg, answered
that during the discussions prior to passage of the Al aska
Rai | road Transfer Act of 1982 (ARTA), placing the railroad under
the Executive Budget Act was considered, but significant work
and studies were perforned and a decision was nmade to exclude
the ARRCto allowit to be flexible and serve its custoner base.

VR. O LEARY recalled that during the federal gover nnment
ownership, using a federal process that was equivalent to the
state’s Executive Budget Act proved problematic for the ARRC
He surmsed that the railroad also had significant deferred
mai nt enance, and that funding and resources were not always
avai |l abl e under the federal process to serve customers well. He
opined that the legislature determ ned that the preferred node
was one that would be a self-sustaining entity, yet would be
fl exi bl e enough to change wi th business fluctuations.

2:10: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed concern that HB 127 would
have a major inpact on the legal framework of the ARRC He
opined that not all of the issues have yet arisen. He stated

that he was very interested in the bill.

CHAIR WLSON offered that some additional questions may be
answered by other testinony on the bill.

2:11: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG inquired as to whether circunstances
have significantly changed that would require the legislature to
make a change. He expressed interest in not just reviewng
whether the decision to transfer the railroad to a public
corporation was appropriately made, but if circunstances warrant
maki ng a change at this tine.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2009



MR. O LEARY comented that the ARRC is trying to figure out

“what is broken” that requires a change. He opined that from
the ARRC s perspective, the railroad is operating on a good
nodel, and while nany things have changed, the nodel has

wi thstood tine. He further opined that this is not the first
time the question has been raised, but each tine the |egislature
has considered maki ng changes, the consensus has been that the
nodel in place is the nost appropriate nodel.

2:13:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S inquired as to whether anyone at the ARRC
has contacted the sponsor of HB 127 to determ ne the reason for
the bill.

MR. O LEARY related his understanding that conversations have
been held with the sponsor's office. In further response to
Representative Harris, M. O Leary indicated that the ARRC is
willing to hold discussions with Representative Stoltze.

2:15: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON recall ed that at the tine of the transfer
to the ARRC, the state was not interested in the railroad. He
opined that the federal governnent did not mnanage the entity,
that it was losing noney, and the state did not want the
rail road under the Executive Budget Act since it would assune
the responsibility for potential cleanup and liabilities. Thus,
the entity was established so the state would not have that
responsibility. He further opined that he was not sure the
state would do a better job. He surmsed that the history
provi des sone reasons why the state did not place the railroad
under the DOT&PF, just as it hosts the Al aska Mrine H ghway
System (AVHS). He offered his belief that the ARRC works, and
he is not sure the state should backtrack. He acknow edged t hat
he has experienced the arrogance. He said, “If that’s the
situation, maybe we don't want to throw the baby out with the
bat hwater, but this is a conversation that’'s very inportant that
we start having.” He offered that it may be the best solution
but highlighted that the Ilegislature should explore all
possibilities prior to bringing governnment into running what has
been a fairly successful business nodel. He said, “1'd like to
spin off sone nore of our agencies as opposed to bringing nore
in.”

2:17:14 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 15- March 12, 2009



CHAIR WLSON i nquired as to overall budget for the ARRC

MR. O LEARY answered in 2008 the ARRC expenditures were $140

mllion, and it had a net inconme of $12.5 mllion. He offered
that the 2009 Capital Budget is approximately $138 nillion,
which he stated is larger this year. M. O Leary, in response

to Chair WIlson, answered that the ARRC is preparing for federal
stimulus projects and has a list of projects ready to neet the
federal deadlines. In further response to Chair WIson, M.
O Leary explained that depending on the project, the ARRC
partners with the private sector. He described one project in
which the ARRC will provide nanagenent, but the private sector
will provide contractors. Another project is to rebuild the
railroad track between Anchorage and Fairbanks, which is a
project that is in its fourth of five years and the ARRC is
usi ng al nost exclusively using ARRC |abor union enployees. He
characterized the | abor sources as a m x.

2:19: 13 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to whether all ARRC enpl oyees are union
enpl oyees.

MR. O LEARY answered that three-fourths of its workforce is
uni on | abor, which is conprised of five unions.

2:19: 33 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS recalled the legislature’s concern over
the status of the Flint HIls - Alaska North Pole Refinery
(Flint HIIls). He further recalled that the refinery produces

approximately 40 percent of the ARRC s freight. He inquired as
to whether if passage of HB 127 wll have any effect on the
ARRC, with respect to the Flint HIls refinery.

MR. O LEARY acknow edged that Flint Hills refinery represents 40
to 45 percent of the ARRC s revenue stream He stated that the
ARRC has no plan to purchase the refinery. He offered that the
Departnent of Natural Resources is having an ongoi ng dial ogue
with Flint HIls, and the ARRC has had peripheral involvenent.
However, he surm sed that any major capital expense for the ARRC
woul d need to be financed through public debt. Thus, currently,
the ARRC would need to request authorization to issue bonds, if
it were to purchase the refinery. He said he was not certain
how that would work if the ARRC were under the Executive Budget
Act .

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 16- March 12, 2009



MR. O LEARY offered to provide the information to the committee
2:22:27 PM

JASON BRUNE, Executive Director, Resource Developnent Counci

(RDC), stated that he is testifying in opposition of HB 127. He
explained that the RDC is statew de nonprofit nenbership funded
organi zation founded in 1975. He offered that its nenbership is
conprised of individuals and conpanies from Alaska's oil and
gas, mning, tinber, tourism and fisheries industries, as well

as Alaska's Native corporations, local communities, organized
| abor, and industry support firnmns. He noted that RDC s purpose
is to link these diverse interests together to encourage a

strong diversified private sector in Al aska. Addi tionally, RDC
hopes to expand the state’s economc base through the
responsi bl e devel opment of its natural resources.

MR. BRUNE opined that HB 127 seeks to nmke a fundanental change
in the operation of the railroad despite that fact that the
current operational structure has served the state well for over
20 years and has produced substantial benefits to Al aska since
it was acquired from the federal governnent in the 1980s. He
further opined that the ARRC is a well run self-sustaining
entity that provides safe, econom cal transportation services to
residents, visitors, the mlitary, and many of RDC s nenbers.
Since the ARRC has fallen under state ownership, it has been
profitable for over 20 years and has nade hundreds of mllions
of dollars in capital inprovenents. He related that an in-depth
assessment conducted before the transfer to state ownership
determ ned that nost of the financial problens encountered under
federal ownership resulted from following federal budgeting
procedures rather than allowing its nmnanagenent to develop
operating and capital progranms on the sane basis as a privately
owned railroad. He offered his belief that it is inperative to
heed advice of this assessnent and not doomthe railroad to the
same fate. He opined that the current business nodel works well
for the ARRC Al though the ARRC is exenpt from the Executive
Budget Act, it has significant state oversight over operation
and rmanagenent practices. He noted that the RDC s nenbers
believe the ARRC provides a valuable and efficient service. He
said, “W are proud of the fact that it pays its own way and has
a good relationship with its custoners, nearly all of whom are
menbers of the RDC In our view it makes no sense to nuke
sweepi ng changes when sonething isn't broken.”

2:25:39 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- March 12, 2009



BOB THOVAS stated that he worked on issues with the railroad six
years ago, but since then a change in managenent has brought a
new attitude, which seens to enbody “the end justifies the
nmeans. ” He opined that the ARRC puts special interests and
political influence above the comunity’s and public needs. He
further opined that the ARRC has shown a conplete disregard for
regul ations and has deliberately tried to mslead the public in
Fai r banks. He said, “They show the wllingness to even
conprom se their own operations to satisfy special needs.”

2:28: 29 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked if he could provide details that would
denonstrate the ARRC s inability to listen

MR. THOVAS answered that an ARRC project in Fairbanks woul d have
rerouted the railroad line through Fort Winwight instead of
following the Parks Hi ghway. The latter route would have
elimnated all of the railroad crossings. He nmaintained that
instead, the ARRC attenpted to route the track around Fort
Wai nwright for political purposes. He related that the ARRC
informed the community that it could not parallel the Parks
Hi ghway since it would need to “double track” the Iine. He
advi sed that the ARRC board verified that was not a requirenent.
Additionally, a Freedom of Information Act (FOA) request did
not provide nost of the information which he surm sed was due to
the security nature. He stated the ARRC dropped the project
routed through Fort Wainwight due to the comunity’s inability
“to get their act together.” However, he noted that resolutions
were provided by every local government requesting the ARRC to
include in its studies the route that would have elimnated al
Cr ossi ngs.

2:32: 11 PM

DON LOWELL, President, Al aska Transportation Consultants, and a
menber of the Rail Safety and Devel opnent Group. He stated that
he forwarded an earlier statenent. He asked to testify in
support of HB 127. He related that main goal is to place the
ARRC under the Executive Budget Act, which essentially would
require the ARRC to seek legislative approval prior to expending
federal funds. He opined that the ARRC needs to do so. He
offered that the ARRC is a state owned system which is one of
four wvital transportation nobdes, yet it operates wthout
| egi sl ati ve oversight. All state and |ocal governnents require
| egislative approval, including the DOT&F which receives
authority for its expenditures. He further opined that the ARRC

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- March 12, 2009



operates with inpunity, and has msused mllions of dollars on a
fatally flawed study to reroute the railroad on Fort Wi nwight.
Last year, the comunity reported to the House Transportation
Standing Comrittee that the ARRC did not have legislative
authority to reroute the railroad. He related that the
commttee informed the Federal Railroad Adm nistration and the
ARRC dr opped the project.

2:34.40 PM

MR. LOWELL stated that $36 mllion was budgeted on the flawed
Fort Wi nwight project. Since its transfer from the federal
government the ARRC has spent hundreds of mllions on projects
wi thout | egislative approval or public hearings. He opined that
HB 127 would ensure that all publically owned agencies wll
receive the same public scrutiny and approval on their budgets
and expenditures of federal and state funds. He surm sed that

since the ARRC nmisled his conmunity that |egislative oversight
is inperative. He referred to the ARRC program and projects and
specifically to the Seward coal loading facility. He pointed
out that the ARRC spent $9.5 million to purchase a 20-year-old
Korean facility, anticipates it will spend $650,000 this year in
repairs, and will require several mllion dollars to nodernize
the obsolete facility. He highlighted that the ARRC purchased
the facility wthout |egislative approval or public hearings.
He further opined that if the ARRC had been under the Executive
Budget Act that it is questionable that the legislature would
have approved the purchase, considering that the Matanuska-

Susitna port will eventually be the coal-loading facility. He
asked what would happen to Seward s coal-loading facility when
that occurs. This bill is very inportant to the state since it
will require conplete oversight and public hearings, he stated.
2:37: 07 PM

DONALD CALLAHAN, nenber, Rail Safety and Devel opnment G oup,
stated that his community is interested in energy problens in
Fai r banks. He opined that a nunber of entities are “not happy
with the Alaska Railroad.” He acknow edged that the ARRC is in
t he busi ness of naking noney. However, he opined that the ARRC
should not do so to “the detrinent of the overall good of the
people of the State of Alaska.” He nmaintained that the ARRC is
often to the detrinment of the state. He highlighted that sone
properties that are |leased could be better wused by state

entities. He surmsed that the “railroad makes deals that
per haps benefit major shippers.” He offered exanples such as
the Usibelli Coal Mne, Inc. and ExxonMbil Corporation. He

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- March 12, 2009



pointed out that the legislature should be famliar with the
agreenents and the details of any agreenents. He opined that
the ARRC, as a sem-private corporation is a good nodel but it
needs oversight. He offered the Rail Safety and Devel opnent
G oup’s strong support for HB 127.

CHAI R WLSON comrented that she w shed the Al aska Marine H ghway
System had a simlar system so it could |lease |land adjacent to
t he wat erways.

2:40: 35 PM

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Alaska State Legislature, explained to nenbers that an
audit report ten years ago conmmented that the ARRC could be
brought under the Executive Budget Act. She related that the
division perfornmed seven or eight audits in the 1990s. The
audi tors observed poor decision-naking on the part of the ARRC s
executives, non-adherence to their own procurenent requirenents,
and potential ethics violations. She enphasi zed those reports
were ten years ago. However, the inpetus for providing the
comment, and not a recommendation, that the ARRC be brought
under the Executive Budget Act is the view that the Executive
Budget Act gives the opportunity of the legislature to evaluate
the financial activities of the ARRC. Additionally, besides the
Executive Budget Act, the Fiscal Procedures Act, the Personnel
Act, and a series of statutes inpose requirenents on agenci es.
She offered that the auditors viewed the Executive Budget Act as
an opportunity for the legislature and the governor to have sone
i nput due to the ARRC s past probl ens.

2:43: 03 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to whether any recent audits have been
per f or med.

M5. DAVIDSON answered no, that the audits were specific
| egi slative requests that cane before the Legislative Budget &
Audit Comm ttee (LB&A). She related that the division has not
had nore recent audit requests. Thus, she related she cannot
speak to the current status of the ARRC with respect to prior
i ssues and managenent of the ARRC.

2:43: 30 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to whether she could provide nore
details about the “unw se decisions” nentioned in the audit.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- March 12, 2009



M5. DAVIDSON offered to provide copies to the conmttee. She
recall ed sone issues had to do with the Ship Creek devel opnent,
and the lack of cost benefit analysis in the decision to sell
heavy equipnment and enter into |ease agreenments for new
equi pnent . She related in various contracts that the ARRC
entered into, that it used a first cone first served approach
wi t hout consi deration for open conpetitive busi ness
opportunities. She highlighted that the ARRC has assets such as
| and. She said, “There’s a |lot of business opportunities for
the railroad and it was in those things that we saw the
probl ens.”

2:45: 22 PM

PATRI CK GAMBLE, President and CEO, Alaska Railroad Corporation
(ARRC), offered to provide additional details on questions posed
to M. O Leary. He highlighted that an opportunity exists since
it has been ten years since the legislature has considered
bringing the ARRC under the Executive Budget Act. He agreed
that the review needs to be done periodically, since conditions
change and if the |egislature’ s expectations have not been fully

nmet, it is inportant to determine the reasons it did not neet
expectations and the ARRC should provide a renedy. He offered
his support for that process. He said that this process
necessitates that the corporate act, AS 42.40 needs to be
reviewed in great detail. He related that during his initial
review he found 50 itenms that wll need to be examned to

determine the effect of placing the ARRC under the Executive
Budget Act.

2:48: 07 PM

MR. GAMBLE related the history of the Alaska Railroad such that
the federal governnent wanted to divest itself or shut down the
railroad. However, he offered that the state decided it needed
a railroad. He surmsed that the state wanted to change the
federal nodel to avoid simlar problens and underwent a
whol esale rewite which resulted in the corporate act that the
ARRC currently operates under. He opined that the fundanental
principle was for the ARRC to operate as an entrepreneuri al
busi ness except for certain elenents of control that the state
needed to naintain. He related about eight pertinent itemns,
such as board menbership and audits. He enphasized the single
nost repeated statenent in Al aska Railroad Transfer Act of 1982
(ARTA), is the overriding concern that in selling bonds, that
t he Al aska Railroad not over obligate.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- March 12, 2009



2:50: 21 PM

MR. GAMBLE opi ned that the provisions that pertain to bonds were

carefully witten into the enabling act. However, he pointed
out that sone provisions were relaxed, such as the need for the
ARRC to act independently. He said, “It doesn’t say in there
that the railroad should act arrogantly. And of course |I'm
struck by that term | heard that a lot when |I first came on

the railroad and we’ve worked very, very hard to try to
under stand what that neans and then get rid of it.”

MR. GAMBLE said that what he’'s found over eight years is that
arrogance is in the eyes of the behol der. He said, “If | don’t
contact anybody, if |I won't talk to anybody, if | won't go to
their office or go visit or whatever and sinply |ook the other
way, close the drapes, that gives pretty good evidence of a
conscientious desire to be al oof and arrogant.”

MR. GAMBLE noted that the ARRC has denonstrated a good record of
speaki ng publically in every possible forum He said, “I cannot
recall a single tinme that | have ever refused to neet in a
public forum or contact a |egislator. And so | hope that sone
of that kind of talk doesn't say otherw se because that sinply
is not true.” He opined what is true is that the railroad is an
operating entity “with wheels turning, with snoke belching, wth
ripping up tracks and noving through people’s property that

famlies owned many, nmany years ago.” He stressed the natura
friction that occurs when encountering noise nuisances and | and
I Ssues. He stressed in instances in which a person who w shes

to purchase property that he/she is |easing, and the ARRC denies
the request, that the ARRC is sonetinmes accused of arrogance.

Instead, he enphasized that the ARRC has |I|istened very
carefully, but has a fiduciary responsibility to manage the | and
and cannot sell it. Thus, it is sometinmes necessary to say no.

He offered that if it is the intent of the legislature that the
ARRC should sell state land, it nmay be one of the conditions
that have changed that needs to be exam ned. He offered his
belief that the problemw |l not be solved solely by placing the
ARRC under the Executive Budget Act.

2:53:29 PM
MR. GAMBLE highlighted that he has a concern about what is not
wor king and why the ARRC should be under the Executive Budget

Act . He stressed the ARRC s record. He offered that the ARRC
has nearly $1 billion in capital inprovenents from a little

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- March 12, 2009



railroad that was purchased for $22 mllion. He further noted
that the ARRC s assets have grown to nearly $900 nmillion. He
explained that the ARRC has experienced a 21 percent conbined
average growh rate for its capital program He pointed out the
ARRC has won awards for passenger service and safety. He opined
that there is not a shred of evidence that the ARRC would work
better under a plan that is simlar to federal ownership.

2:54:44 PM

MR. GAMBLE offered his belief that the issue is not just this
bill, which would place the ARRC under the Executive Budget Act
for budget approval, but the likelihood that other bills would
be introduced that could affect the ARRC, depending on routine
constituent conplaints or rate issues. He indicated that
instead of contacting the ARRC Board in a public neeting to
voi ce his/her concern, that a person would take the matter to
hi s/her legislator for resolution. He surm sed that type of
nodel would not be a nodel that would inprove the ARRC He
highlighted that wth respect to the source of current
di scontent in Fairbanks, the issue had often been discussed,
i ncludi ng discussions held in public forunms before the assenbly
and the mayor. He opined that the comunity and ARRC sinply
di sagr ee. He said, “That’s business.” He further opined that
it is a stretch to suggest the ARRC does not care.

2:56:40 PM

MR. GAMBLE offered his belief that when issues becone heated
comments are nmade about arrogance. He highlighted that the ARRC
must say no sonetines and that can be perceived as unfeeling or
uncaring. He said:

|’ve told ny staff we have to learn how to say no
wi t hout saying no. That ny policy is when we have to
say no, we’'ve got to do it with full know edge and
background, that we owe an explanation, that we have
put the facts forward, that our docunents are open to
the public - that we say no in a public forum on the
record, just Ilike 1’ve done time and tinme again.
Because that’s the way we show people that it’s not a
case of being unfeeling or wuncaring, but it’s a case
of as a business or as a fiduciary holders of the
state’s responsibility in land managenent, there are
times when we are sinply going to have to say no. |I'm
sorry if it comes across as arrogance and | wll
continue to work that very, very hard because | do not

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 23- March 12, 2009



want this railroad, whether |I'm still here or not, to
have a reputation |like that. And if | can take sone

suggestions, specifically, on how to get rid of
reputation, which continues to kind of bother

t hat

us, |

would be very happy to take suggestions from the

commi ttee.
2:58:31 PM
CHAIR WLSON announced that the commttee would continue
testimony at a subsequent neeting.
MR. GAMBLE offered to nmeet with the bill sponsor to discuss sone
of the issues.
2:59:49 PM
ADJ QURNIVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at

2:59 p.m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 24- March 12, 2009



